



LOWER COLUMBIA COLLEGE

BOARD POLICIES

Table of Contents

SECTION 1 - GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRAT	ION 3
Policy 1.01 - Mission	3
Policy 1.02 - Vision	
Policy 1.03 - Values	
Policy 1.04 - Mission and Objectives	
SECTION 2 - GOVERNANCE PROCESS	6
Policy 2.01 - Governance Commitment	
Policy 2.02 - Governing Style	6
Policy 2.03 - Board Job Description	7
Policy 2.04 - Chair's Role	8
Policy 2.05 - Board Planning and Agenda	9
Policy 2.06 - Board Committee Principles	
Policy 2.07 - Board Members' Code of Conduct	
Policy 2.08 - Bylaws	
Policy 2.09 - Honorary Degrees	
Policy 2.10 - Emeritus Titles (Trustees and Preside	
SECTION 3 - BOARD-STAFF RELATIONSHIP	16
Policy 3.01 - Delegation to the President	16
Policy 3.02 - President's Job Description	
Policy 3.03 - Monitoring Presidential Performance.	17
SECTION 4 - EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS	
Policy 4.01 - General Executive Constraints	
Policy 4.02 - Treatment of People	19
Policy 4.03 - Compensation and Benefits	20
Policy 4.04 - Budgeting/Forecasting	20
Policy 4.05 - Financial Condition	21
Policy 4.06 - Asset Protection	22
Policy 4.07 - Communication and Counsel to the B	oard22
Board Policy Review Cycle	
Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Information	n

Section 1 - Mission and Objectives

Policy 1.01 - Mission

Mission

The mission of Lower Columbia College is to ensure each learner's personal and professional success, and influence lives in ways that are local, global, traditional and innovative.

Historic Information

- Reviewed: July 19, 2023
- Reviewed: July 20, 2022
- Reviewed: July 28, 2021
- Reviewed: November 18, 2020
- Reviewed July 17, 2019
- Reviewed: August 23, 2017
- Reviewed: September 21, 2011
- Revised: July 18, 2007
- Reviewed: November 20, 2002
- Adopted: September 1, 1999

Policy 1.02 - Vision

Vision

Our vision is to be a powerful force for improving the quality of life in our community.

Historic Information

- Reviewed: July 19, 2023
- Reviewed: July 20, 2022
- Reviewed: July 28, 2021
- Reviewed: November 18, 2020
- Reviewed July 17, 2019
- Reviewed: August 23, 2017
- Reviewed: September 21, 2011
- Revised: July 18, 2007
- Reviewed: November 20, 2002
- Adopted: September 1, 1999

Policy 1.03 - Values

Values

Our campus community expects an environment of integrity, respect, collaboration, cooperation, inclusion, and innovation that fosters personal growth, academic excellence, and accountability.

Historic Information

• Reviewed: July 19, 2023

• Reviewed: July 20, 2022

• Reviewed: July 28, 2021

• Reviewed: November 18, 2020

• Reviewed July 17, 2019

• Reviewed: August 23, 2017

• Reviewed: September 21, 2011

• Revised: July 18, 2007

Reviewed: November 20, 2002Adopted: September 1, 1999

Policy 1.04 - Mission and Objectives

Workforce and Economic Development

- 1. Provide quality professional/technical education for employment, skills enhancement, and career development.
- 2. Partner with business, community groups, and other educational entities to provide workforce development and customized programs and services.

Academic Transfer

- 1. Offer courses and support for students to meet the requirements for transfer from Lower Columbia College.
- 2. Provide the support for transfer students to successfully transition to upper division college and university programs.

Preparation for College Level Studies

1. Ensure that students who are under-prepared for college level studies have access to developmental coursework and bridge opportunities for college level work.

Student Access, Support and Completion

- 1. Offer a fully array of educational programs and support services to meet the diverse needs of Cowlitz and Wahkiakum counties.
- 2. Provide students with the support needed to pursue and achieve their educational goals.

Institutional Excellence and Community Enrichment

- 1. Demonstrate our commitment to institutional integrity by investing in our campus, students and employees.
- 2. Uphold our reputation for high quality and contribute to the value of the community by promoting excellence in our programs, services and activities.

Historic Information

• Reviewed: July 19, 2023

• Reviewed: July 20, 2022

• Revised: July 28, 2021

• Reviewed: November 18, 2020

Reviewed July 17, 2019

• Reviewed: August 23, 2017

• Revised: July 20, 2011

Reviewed: September 21, 2011

Revised: July 18, 2007

Reviewed: November 20, 2002Adopted: September 1, 1999

Section 2 - Governance Process

Policy 2.01 - Governance Commitment

The Board of Trustees will govern Lower Columbia College in accordance with the Constitution and the Community and Technical College Act of the State of Washington. The Board will always act in the best interest of the College and the community as a whole. The Board is committed to excellence in educational programs and other services of the College and availability to all people.

Historic Information

Reviewed: October 18, 2023

Reviewed: 2005-2009Revised: August 25, 2004Reviewed: December 18, 2002

Policy 2.02 - Governing Style

The Board will govern with a style that emphasizes outward vision rather than an internal preoccupation, encouragement of diversity in viewpoints, strategic leadership rather than administrative detail, clear distinction of Board and presidential roles, collective rather than individual decisions, future rather than past or present, and proactive rather than reactive.

More specifically, the Board will:

- 1. Operate in all ways mindful of its trusteeship obligation to the public. It will allow no officer, individual, trustee, or committee of the Board to prevent its fulfilling this commitment.
- 2. Enforce upon itself whatever discipline is needed to govern with excellence. Discipline will apply to matters such as attendance, policy-making principles, respect of roles, speaking with one voice, and ensuring the continuity of governance capability. Continual development will include orientation of new members in the Board's governance process and periodic Board discussion of process improvement.
- 3. Direct, control and inspire the organization through the careful establishment of the broadest organizational policies reflecting the Board's values and perspectives. The Board's major focus will be on the intended long-term impacts outside the operating organization (Mission and Objectives), not on the administrative or programmatic means of attaining those effects (Means).
- 4. Cultivate a sense of group responsibility. Ultimately, the Board will be responsible for excellence in governing. The Board will be an initiator of policy, not merely a reactor to staff initiatives. The Board will use the expertise of individual trustees to enhance

- the work of the Board as a body, rather than substitute their individual judgments for those of the Board as a whole.
- 5. Monitor and discuss the Board's process and performance Self-monitoring will include comparison of Board activity and discipline to policies in the Governance Process and Board-Staff Relationship categories.
- 6. Seek input from staff, students, alumni, employers, and other community members on Board policies.
- 7. Board decisions will be made, to the extent possible, on a consensus.

Revised: October 18, 2023
Reviewed: 2005-2009
Revised: August 25, 2004
Reviewed: December 18, 2002

Policy 2.03 - Board Job Description

The Board shall set the direction of the College and shall represent the public in determining and demanding appropriate organizational performance. To distinguish the Board's own unique job from the jobs of its staff, the Board will concentrate its efforts on the following responsibilities:

- 1. Serving as the link between the College and the public.
- 2. Enacting written governing policies, which address:
 - a. Mission and Objectives: College services, impacts, benefits, outcomes, recipients, and their relative worth (what good for which needs at what cost). Mission and Objectives include College mission, values, vision, objectives, goals and priorities.
 - b. Governance Process: Specification of how the Board conceives, carries out, and monitors its own tasks.
 - c. Board-President Relationship: How power is delegated and its proper use monitored; the President's authority and accountability.
 - d. Executive Limitations: Constraints on executive authority, which establish the prudence and ethics boundaries within which all executive activity and decisions must take place.
- 3. Monitoring institutional performance and the President's performance (against Board policies on Mission and Objectives, and Executive Limitations).
- 4. Promoting a positive image for the College.
- 5. Serving as a link between the College and the Lower Columbia College Foundation to ensure alignment of Foundation activities with Board policies and priorities.
- 6. Naming all campus facilities (buildings, parts of buildings, structures and other key campus areas) based on staff recommendations using the guidelines below. Board decisions will be based on compliance with the following guidelines, consistent application of staff policies, and campus/community demonstrated support. The

Board of Trustees reserves the right to rename any facility using the following quidelines.

- a. All recommendations will be in compliance with building naming and/or numbering regulations as may be directed by the State or local governments.
- b. Recommendations may consider the location, function, or intended use of campus facilities.
- c. Recommendations may consider individuals or groups to be recognized for significant accomplishment and/or substantial economic donations.
- 7. Ensuring institutional compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
- 8. Executing all other appropriate Board business.

Historic Information

Revised: October 18, 2023Reviewed: 2005-2009Revised: August 25, 2004

• Reviewed: December 18, 2002

Policy 2.04 - Chair's Role

The responsibilities of the Chair are, primarily, the integrity of the Board's process and, secondarily, occasional representation of the Board to outside parties. The Chair is the only Board member authorized to speak for the Board (beyond simply reporting Board decisions) other than in rare and specifically authorized instances.

- The Chair shall ensure the Board and individual Board members act consistently with the Board's own rules and policies and those legitimately imposed upon the Board from outside the College.
 - a. The Chair shall preside at Board meetings in an efficient and effective manner and shall set the general tone for each meeting through positive leadership.
 - b. The Chair will lead discussion at the Board meetings on those issues, which, according to Board policy, belong to the Board to decide.
 - c. Deliberation will be fair, open, and thorough but also efficient, timely, orderly, and to the point.
 - d. The Chair will attempt to arrive at a consensus by the Board members on Board The Chair will stimulate discussion among the Board members.
- 2. In setting the agenda, the authority of the Chair consists of making decisions that fall within the topics covered by Board policies on Governance Process and Board-Staff Relationship, except where the Board specifically delegates portions of this authority to others. The Chair is authorized to use any reasonable interpretation of the provisions in these policies.
- 3. The Chair has no authority to make decisions about policies created by the Board within Mission and Objectives and Executive Limitations policy areas.
- 4. The Chair has no individual authority to supervise or direct the President.

- 5. The Chair shall ensure the other Board members are informed of current and pending Board issues and processes.
- 6. The Chair shall appoint representatives as required to conduct Board business.

Revised: October 18, 2023Reviewed: 2005-2009Revised: August 25, 2004

• Reviewed: December 18, 2002

Policy 2.05 - Board Planning and Agenda

The Board will carry out its responsibilities using a governance style consistent with Board policies by:

- Re-exploring Mission and Objectives policies periodically.
- Holding an annual planning session.
- Continually improving its performance through Board education and enriched input and deliberation.
- Annually reviewing actual revenues and expenditures against approved budget plan.
- Periodically reviewing actual performance against the approved College Strategic Plan.
- 1. The agenda for all Board meetings will be prepared by the Chair after consultation with the President and based on input from other Board The agenda will be delivered to the Board at least five (5) days before the meeting.
- 2. At its regular monthly meetings, the Board will follow an agenda that implements the Board policy on Governing Style.
- 3. Education, monitoring, input, and deliberation will be paramount in structuring meetings and other Board activities.
- 4. The annual planning session will be held no later than April.
 - a. The College Mission will be reviewed at the annual planning
 - b. Budget parameters and priorities will be established at the annual planning session.
 - c. Subjects for Board discussion and action during the following year will be developed at the annual planning session.
- 5. The College budget will be approved by the Board annually in June. Revised budgets will be submitted to the Board for approval as necessary during the fiscal year but no more often than quarterly.
- 6. Board policies and policy revisions will not be adopted until they have been considered at a minimum of two meetings, unless Board action waives this requirement and immediate effect is authorized.

Revised: October 18, 2023
Reviewed: 2005-2009
Revised: August 25, 2004
Reviewed: December 18, 2002

Policy 2.06 - Board Committee Principles

Board committees, when used, will operate so as to minimally interfere with the wholeness of the Board's job and so as never to interfere with delegation of authority from the Board to the President. Committees will be used sparingly.

- 1. Board committees are to help the Board do its job, not to do jobs of the staff. Committees ordinarily will assist the Board by preparing policy alternatives and implications for Board deliberation. Board committees are not to be created by the Board to advise staff.
- 2. Board committees may not speak or act for the Board except when formally given such authority for specific and time-limited purposes. Expectations and authority will be carefully stated in order not to conflict with authority delegated to the President.
- 3. Board committees cannot exercise authority over staff. Because the President works for the full Board, the President is not required to obtain approval of a Board committee before an executive action. In keeping with the Board's broader focus, Board committees will normally not have direct dealings with current staff operations.
- 4. Board committees are to avoid over-identification with organizational parts rather than the whole. Therefore, a Board committee which has helped the Board create policy on some subject will not be used to monitor organizational performance on that same subject.
- 5. This policy applies only to committees, which are formed by Board action, whether or not the committees include non-Board members. It does not apply to committees formed under the authority of the President.
- 6. The Board shall have an Audit Committee, comprised of two trustees, which shall represent the board at the annual audit exit interview.
- 7. **Ad hoc** committees may be established which have no more than two trustees or members and which have responsibility only within specific directives from the Board and are limited by time.

Historic Information

• Reviewed: October 18, 2023

Reviewed: 2005-2009Revised: August 25, 2004

• Reviewed: December 18, 2002

Policy 2.07 - Board Members' Code of Conduct

The Board expects ethical conduct by itself and its members. This includes proper use of authority and appropriate decorum in both group and individual behavior when acting as Board members.

- 1. Board members must maintain unconflicted loyalty to the interests of the citizens and the College district. This accountability supersedes any conflicting loyalty such as that to advocacy or interest groups and membership on other boards or staffs. This accountability supersedes the personal interest of any Board member acting as an individual consumer of college services.
- 2. Board members must avoid any conflict of interest with respect to their fiduciary responsibility.
 - a. There must be no self-dealing or any conduct of private business or personal services between any Board member and the College except as allowed by Chapter 52 RCW.
 - b. Board members must not use their positions to obtain employment by the College for themselves, family members, friends, or associates.
 - c. Board members shall abstain from votes upon which they have an appearance of a conflict of interest.
- 3. The Board speaks with one voice, and Board members may not attempt to exercise individual authority over the organization except as explicitly set forth in Board policies.
 - a. Board members' interaction with the President or with staff must recognize the lack of authority in any individual Board member or group of Board members except as noted above.
 - b. Board members' interaction with the public, press, or other entities must recognize the same limitation and the similar inability of any Board member(s) to speak for the Board except for those duties reserved to the Chair.
 - c. Board members will make no judgments of the President or staff performance except as that performance is assessed against explicit Board policies.
- 4. Board members will participate in educational activities, including state, regional and national meetings, to enhance their ability to serve effectively as members of the College's governing Board.
- Board members will not permit themselves to be used to circumvent established lines of authority or interfere in the normal procedures for the processing of complaints or grievances.
- 6. Board members will not violate confidentiality including discussions that occur at legally held executive sessions of the Board.
- 7. Board members will use the approved process to introduce a Board meeting agenda change.

Reviewed: October 18, 2023

Reviewed: 2005-2009Revised: August 25, 2004

• Reviewed: December 18, 2002

Policy 2.08 - Bylaws

Quorum

Three members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of all business. At all regular or special meetings, the members present shall wait a reasonable time and, if there is not a sufficient number present to provide a quorum, the meeting shall be postponed.

Officers

Officers of the Board shall consist of a Chair and a Vice Chair who shall be elected from the members. The term of office for each officer shall be one year or until a successor is elected and qualified. Officers shall be nominated as the last item of Board business at the February meeting. Their election shall occur as the last item of Board business at the March meeting. The newly elected officers shall assume their respective chairs at the end of the March meeting. No Chair may serve for two successive full terms. A majority of the Board shall be necessary for election. A vacancy occurring in either office may be filled at any regular meeting of the board.

The Chair shall preside at all meetings and shall exercise such other powers as properly pertain to this office and may be delegated to him/her by the Board. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall preside.

It shall be the duty of the President to act as Secretary at all regular and special meetings of the Board, to keep an accurate journal of the proceedings, and to take charge of its books and documents. The President shall carry out the duties, responsibilities, and functions directed by the Board of Trustees concerning the operation of the College and shall appoint a Secretary *pro tem* to record the minutes of the meeting.

Committees

The Chair may, with the approval of the Board, appoint such committees from time to time as may be required. These committees shall cease to exist upon the acceptance of their reports or upon their formal discharge.

Parliamentary Procedure

Except as otherwise specified here, the proceedings of the Board shall be governed by the rules prescribed in *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised*. A majority of the entire Board is required for all actions taken and for all motions passed.

Amendments of Bylaws

The bylaws may be amended at any meeting of the Board of Trustees by an affirmative vote of three Board members, provided written notice of the proposed amendment was given at the previous meeting and each Board member has been given notice of the proposed change. Amendments of the bylaws shall take effect upon the date of their adoption.

The bylaws may be amended or suspended at any Board meeting, without previous notice, by an affirmative vote of four of the Board members.

Historic Information

• Reviewed:October 18, 2023

• Reviewed: 2005-2009

• Revised: August 25, 2004

Reviewed: December 18, 2002

• Adopted: July 1, 1975

Policy 2.09 - Honorary Degrees

Policy

The board, upon recommendation of the faculty, may also confer honorary associate of arts degrees, or if it is authorized to award baccalaureate degrees may confer honorary bachelor of applied science degrees, upon persons other than graduates of the community college, in recognition of their learning or devotion to education, literature, art, or science. No degree may be conferred in consideration of the payment of money or the donation of any kind of property. The Board of Trustees reserves and retains sole authority and discretion in the awarding of honorary degrees subject to the specific conditions and limitations set forth in R.C.W. 28B.50.140 (12).

Procedure

The following procedure shall be followed:

- Nominations for an honorary degree may originate from the Board, President, Administration, Faculty, Staff or Students or from the community at large and should be sent to the Vice President of Instruction's office before February 1st in the year the degree is sought to be awarded.
- 2. An Honorary Degree Committee, made up of three faculty members selected by the faculty body, and the Vice President of Instruction as an Ex Officio member, will meet

- and review any nomination that has been submitted and seek input from the faculty as required by statute.
- 3. The Honorary Degree Committee may consider the following examples of when an Honorary Degree may be merited.
- a. An exceptional student who has died before completing their degree.
- b. A civic leader who has made an extensive contribution to the college through their actions in volunteering, mentoring or other endeavors but not "the payment of money or the donation of any kind of property."
- c. A person who has made a substantial contribution to "education, literature, art or science."
- d. A person who has contributed substantially to the quality of life and learning of the students of the college.
- e. In rare cases a person who, as a living example of leadership or community service, represented the core values of the college over an extensive period of time.
- 4. The Honorary Degree Committee will forward their recommendation along with all written comments from the faculty to the President to be delivered to the Board of Trustees.
- 5. Honorary degrees will generally be conferred at Commencement, and may be awarded posthumously or in absentia. Few, if any, honorary degrees should be granted in any one year.
- 6. The Board of Trustees shall consider the recommendations of the Honorary Degree Committee and the submitted comments and any other factors they deem appropriate and then, in their sole discretion and by their vote, authorize the granting of such honorary degrees as they decide are truly merited.
- 7. The President shall then notify the recipient, and arrange for their opportunity to be present and suitably attired to receive the degree. In the case of a deceased recipient, a designee shall be determined by the Board (e.g. a member of the recipient's family, spouse, partner or friend), to receive the degree on the recipient's behalf.

Adopted: November 15, 2023

Policy 2.10 - Emeritus Titles (Trustees and President)

Policy

Emeritus is a designated honorary status intended to recognize the distinguished contributions of a retiring or retired Lower Columbia College (LCC) President or Trustee. The conferral of the Emeritus title shall be based on individual distinction and quality of contributions and service to the College and community, and shall remain in force

until death. The emeritus appointment carries no formal associated responsibilities or compensation.

Qualifications

- Any retiring or retired President or Trustee with a long-term record of service to the College and community and dedication to professional excellence may be eligible for emeritus status.
- Any President or Trustee retired prior to approval of this policy that has not previously been awarded emeritus status may be appointed to such status retroactively to the date of their retirement.
- Persons who hold an emeritus title at other institutions normally are not eligible for an emeritus title at LCC.

Rights and Privileges

- Listing in college publications as appropriate.
- An identification card denoting emeritus status.
- Library and computer lab privileges.
- Access to college events, performances, athletic events, and college publications as available to all members of the campus community.
- Invitations to college receptions and similar events including commencement.

Nomination and Approval

Any member of the LCC Board of Trustees may submit a nomination naming a retiring or retired LCC President or Trustee to become President Emeritus or Trustee Emeritus by February 1st in the year the title is sought to be awarded. A motion shall be made and approved by a majority vote of the LCC Board of Trustees to grant emeritus status. The Board retains the authority to withdraw a President Emeritus or Trustee Emeritus title at its discretion as it deems necessary and appropriate.

Historic Information

Adopted: December 13, 2023

Section 3 - Board-Staff Relationship

Policy 3.01 - Delegation to the President

All Board authority delegated to staff is delegated through the President. All authority and accountability of staff is considered to be the authority and accountability of the President.

- 1. The Board will direct the President to achieve certain results through the establishment of Mission and Objectives policies and specific statutory delegations. The Board will limit the latitude the President may exercise in practices, methods, conduct, and other "means" through establishment of Executive Limitations policies.
- 2. As long as the President uses any reasonable interpretation of the Board's Mission and Objectives and Executive Limitations policies, the President is authorized to establish all further policies, make all decisions, take all actions, establish all practices, and develop all activities.
- 3. The Board may change its Mission and Objectives and Executive Limitations policies, thereby shifting the boundary between Board and President domains. By so doing, the Board changes the latitude choice given to the President. However, as long as a policy is in effect, the Board will respect and support the President's decisions that conform to that policy.
- 4. Only decisions of the Board acting as a body are binding upon the President.
 - a. Decisions or instructions of individual Board members, officers, or committees are not binding on the President except in rare instances when the Board has specifically authorized such exercise of authority.
 - b. If Board members or committees request information or assistance without Board authorization, the President can refuse such requests that, in the President's judgment, require a material amount of staff time or funds or are disruptive.
- 5. The President shall apply to the Board for a waiver of a Board Policy if the President deems a waiver is in the best interest of the College.

Historic Information

Revised: October 18, 2023Reviewed: January 15, 2003

Policy 3.02 - President's Job Description

The President is the chief executive officer of the College. The President is the Board's single official link with the operating organization. The President is accountable to the Board acting as a body. The Board will instruct the President through written policies delegating implementation to the President. The President's performance will be considered synonymous with the organizational performance of the College as a whole.

The President's responsibilities can be stated as performance in two areas:

- 1. Organizational accomplishment of the Boards' policies on Mission and Objectives.
- 2. Organizational operation within the boundaries established in Board policies on Executive Limitations.

Historic Information

Revised: OCtober 18, 2023Reviewed: January 15, 2003

Policy 3.03 - Monitoring Presidential Performance

Monitoring executive performance is synonymous with monitoring organizational performance against Board policies on Mission and Objectives and on Executive Limitations. The Board will monitor performance in a manner as to have systematic assurance of policy compliance, including accomplishments of Mission and Objectives.

- 1. The purpose of monitoring is simply to determine the degree to which Board policies are being fulfilled. Information that does not do this will not be considered to be monitoring. Monitoring will be done in a way to permit the Board to use most of its time to create the future rather than review the past.
- 2. A given policy may be monitored in one or more of three ways:
 - a. Internal Reports: Disclosure of compliance information to the Board from the Internal reports include:
 - Institutional data collection
 - Community surveys
 - Wage and employment data
 - Assessment of student learning
 - System and other peer comparison data
 - Financial reports
 - Monitoring Reports on Mission and Objectives: Workforce and Economic Development; Academic Transfer; Preparation for College Level Studies; Student Access, Support and Completion; Institutional Excellence and Community Enrichment.
 - b. External Reports: Disclosure of compliance information by an external auditor or other persons or entities external to the External reports include:
 - Audit reports
 - · Licensing examination results
 - Accreditation reports
 - Transfer data
 - c. Direct Board Inspection: Discovery of compliance information by a Board member, a committee, or the Board as a whole. This is an inspection of documents,

- activities, or circumstances directed by the Board, which allows a test of policy compliance.
- 3. Policies can be monitored by any method at any time. Mission and Objectives and Executive Limitations policies will be monitored by the Board no less than annually.

Revised: October 18, 2023Reviewed: January 15, 2003

Section 4 - Executive Limitations

Policy 4.01 - General Executive Constraints

The President shall not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision, or organizational circumstance that is illegal, imprudent, or in violation of our College core values; commonly accepted business and professional ethics; and contractual agreements.

Accordingly, the President may not:

- 1. Deal with students, staff, or persons from the community in an inhumane, unfair, or undignified manner.
- 2. Permit financial conditions that risk fiscal jeopardy or compromise Mission and Objectives.
- 3. Provide information and advice to the Board that is untimely, incomplete, or in accurate.
- 4. Permit conflict of interest in awarding purchases or other contracts or hiring of employees.
- 5. Allow the day-to-day operations to impede the vision or prevent the achievement of the Mission and Objectives of the institution.
- 6. Manage the College without adequate administrative policies for matters involving finances, staff, students, facilities, and College services.
- 7. Manage the College without utilizing appropriate shared governance.

Historic Information

• Revised: October 18, 2023

• Reviewed: February 19, 2003

• Reviewed: September 1, 1999

Policy 4.02 - Treatment of People

Treatment of and dealings with students, staff, and citizens from the community, shall not be inhumane, unfair, or undignified.

Accordingly, the President may not:

 Operate without policies and/or procedures that set forth staff and student rules, provide for effective handling of grievances, ensure due process, and protect against wrongful conditions.

- Fail to comply with all state and federal laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to employees and students including those pertaining to discrimination and equal opportunity.
- 3. Prevent students and staff from using established grievance procedures.
- 4. Fail to acquaint students and staff with their rights and responsibilities.
- 5. Fail to take prompt and appropriate action when the President becomes aware of any violation of state or federal laws, rules, or regulations or of Board policies.

Reviewed: October 18, 2023
Reviewed: February 19, 2003
Reviewed: September 1, 1999

Policy 4.03 - Compensation and Benefits

The President may not jeopardize fiscal integrity or public image with respect to employment compensation and benefits to employees, consultants, and contract workers.

Accordingly, the President may not:

- 1. Change his/her own compensation and benefits.
- Provide for or change the compensation and benefits of other employees except in accordance with collective bargaining agreements, salary schedules, and as allowable by state and federal laws.
- 3. Promise or imply guaranteed employment beyond that authorized by contract or law.
- 4. Employ administrators under a contract for longer than one year's duration.
- 5. Permit favoritism in the allocation of College resources.

Historic Information

Reviewed: October 18, 2023Reviewed: February 19, 2003Reviewed: September 1, 1999

Policy 4.04 - Budgeting/Forecasting

Budgeting for any fiscal year or the remaining part of any fiscal year shall not deviate materially from Mission and Objectives, priorities, risk fiscal jeopardy, or be unrealistic in projections of income and expenses. No budget will become effective until approved by the Board.

Accordingly, the President may not:

- Propose a budget without information to enable accurate projection of revenues and expenses, separation of capital and operational items, cash flow, and disclosure of planning assumptions.
- 2. Plan the expenditure in any fiscal year of more funds than are conservatively projected to be received during that year plus any carryover funds from previous years to the extent authorized by the Carryover dollars to be brought before the Board with explanation of correlation to fund balances.
- 3. Propose a budget that does not provide the annual operating funds for Board prerogatives, such as costs of fiscal audit, Board development and training, and Board professional fees.
- 4. Propose a budget that does not have a broad base of input.
- 5. Propose a budget that fails to take into account Mission and Objectives and priorities.
- 6. Propose a budget that fails to include funding to meet the College's annual goals and priorities and provide resources to provide adequate plant maintenance, equipment enhancement, program and staff development, and institutional effectiveness.
- 7. Propose a budget that does not retain an amount equal to at least 10 percent of the total annual operating budget (excluding grants & contract funds) in an operating reserve.

• Revised: October 18, 2023

• Revised: February 16, 2011 (added 4.7)

Reviewed: February 19, 2003Revised: September 1, 1999

Policy 4.05 - Financial Condition

The President may not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy or a material deviation from the Board-approved budget.

Accordingly, the President may not:

- 1. Expend more funds than have been budgeted in the fiscal year without prior Board approval.
- 2. Indebt the organization in an amount greater than can be repaid by otherwise unencumbered revenues within the current fiscal year or can be repaid from accounts previously established by the Board for that purpose.
- 3. Expend funds from restricted or designated accounts except for the purposes for which the account was established.
- 4. Fail to provide a quarterly report of the College's current financial condition to the Board.
- 5. Make any purchase or commit the organization to any individual expenditure that deviates more than \$50,000 from the approved budget without Board approval.

- 6. Without Board approval, accept gifts or grants that:
 - a. obligate the College to make future expenditures with funds other than those created by the gift or grant; or
 - b. are not in the best interest of the College to accept.

Revised: OCtober 18, 2023
Reviewed: February 19, 2003
Reviewed: September 1, 1999

Policy 4.06 - Asset Protection

The President may not allow assets to be unprotected, inadequately maintained, nor unnecessarily risked.

Accordingly, the President may not:

- 1. Fail to provide adequate protection against theft and casualty.
- Fail to establish disaster/emergency management plans.
- 3. Permit plant and equipment to be subjected to improper wear and tear or inadequate maintenance.
- 4. Unnecessarily expose the College, the Board, or staff to claims of liability.
- 5. Receive, process, or disburse funds under controls that are not sufficient to meet the auditor's standards.
- 6. Invest funds in accounts or in investments not permitted by Washington law.
- 7. Acquire, encumber, or dispose of real property without Board approval.
- 8. Fail to protect property, information, and files from loss or damage.
- 9. Permit facilities development or modifications that are not in conformance with the Board-approved *Facility Master Plan*.

Historic Information

Reviewed: OCtober 18, 2023Reviewed: February 19, 2003Reviewed: September 1, 1999

Policy 4.07 - Communication and Counsel to the Board

The President may not permit the Board to be inadequately informed.

Accordingly, the President may not:

- 1. Neglect to submit monitoring data required by the Board (see policy on Monitoring Executive Performance) in a timely, accurate, and understandable fashion, directly addressing provisions of the Board policies being monitored.
- Fail to make the Board aware of relevant trends, anticipated adverse media coverage, actual or anticipated legal actions, or material external and internal changes, particularly changes in the assumptions upon which any Board policy has previously been established.
- 3. Fail to advise the Board if, in the President's opinion, the Board is not in compliance with its own policies on Governance Process and Board-Staff Relationship, particularly in the case of Board behavior which is detrimental to the working relationship between the Board and the President.
- 4. Present information in unnecessarily complex or lengthy form or that is knowingly inaccurate or incomplete.
- 5. Fail to provide a mechanism for official Board or committee communications.
- 6. Fail to deal with the Board as a whole except when:
 - a. fulfilling individual requests for information, or
 - b. responding to officers or committees duly charged by the Board.
- 7. Fail to report in a timely manner an actual, or anticipated, noncompliance with any policy of the Board.

Historic Information

Reviewed: October 18, 2023
Reviewed: February 19, 2003
Reviewed: September 1, 1999

Board Policy Review Cycle

Review Cycle

Policy sections to be reviewed every three years.

Policy Section	Review Period	Date Review Completed/ Review Status
Section 1: Mission, Vision, and Values; and Mission and Objectives	Annual	Policy 1.01: July 19, 2023 Policy 1.02: July 19, 2023 Policy 1.03: July 19, 2023 Policy 1.04: July 19, 2023
Section 2: Governance Process	2024-25	Policy 2.01 Policy 2.02 Policy 2.03 Policy 2.04 Policy 2.05 Policy 2.06 Policy 2.07 Policy 2.08 Policy 2.09: November 15, 2023 Policy 2.10: December 13, 2023
Section 3: Board-Staff Relationship	2025-26	Policy 3.01 Policy 3.02 Policy 3.03
Section 4: Executive Limitations	2026-27	Policy 4.01 Policy 4.02 Policy 4.03 Policy 4.04 Policy 4.05 Policy 4.06 Policy 4.07

Review Process

• The Board of Trustees (BOT) will review policy sections to determine if revisions are necessary and approve any needed adjustments.

Historic Information

• Adopted: October 18, 2023

Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Information

Lower Columbia College provides equal opportunity in education and employment and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, citizenship or immigration status, age, perceived or actual physical or mental disability, pregnancy, genetic information, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, creed, religion, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or use of a trained guide dog or service animal as required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, Sections 504 and 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act and ADA Amendment Act, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act and Washington State's Law Against Discrimination, Chapter 49.60 RCW and their implementing regulations. All Inquiries regarding compliance with Title IX, access, equal opportunity and/or grievance procedures should be directed to Vice President of Foundation, HR & Legal Affairs, 1600 Maple Street, PO Box 3010, Longview, WA 98632, title9@lowercolumbia.edu, Phone number, (360) 442-2120, Phone number/TTY (800) 833-6388.

Document	F
Index	Financial Condition 21
Α	G
Anti Harassment 25 Asset Protection 22	General Executive Constraints
В	Governance Process 6 Governing Style 6
Board Committee	
Principles 10 Board Job Description 7	Н
Board Members' Code of Conduct11 Board Planning and	Honorary Degrees 13
Agenda9	M
Board-Staff Relationship	Mission
C	1 6110111141100
Chair's role8	N
Communication and Counsel to the Board 22 Compensation and	Non-Discrimination 25
Benefits	P
	Policy Review Cycle 24
D	President's Job Description 16
Delegation to the	·
President16	Т
E	Treatment of People 19
Emeritus Titles (Trustees and President) 14	V
Executive Limitations 19	Values



1600 Maple Street, Longview, WA 98632 lowercolumbia.edu

Lower Columbia College provides equal opportunity in education and employment and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, perceived or actual physical or mental disability, pregnancy, genetic information, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, creed, religion, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or use of a trained guide dog or service animal. All inquiries regarding compliance with access, equal opportunity and/or grievance procedures should be directed to Vice President of Foundation, HR & Legal Affairs,1600 Maple Street, PO Box 3010, Longview, WA 98632, Phone number, 360.442.2120, Phone number/TTY 800.833.6388. Learn more at lowercolumbia.edu/aa-eeo.

Jeanne Clery Statement: Notice of Availability of Annual Security and Fire Safety Report: In compliance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Crime Statistics Act of 1998, and as a part of the College's commitment to safety and security on campus, Lower Columbia College reports the mandated information about current campus policies concerning safety and security issues, the required statistics, and other related information for the past three (3) calendar years. Lower Columbia College's Annual Security and Fire Safety Report is available online at lowercolumbia.edu/CleryASFR.